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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

Ch/ 0 6 - Q 1 0 1 8  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

VS. 

CHARTS JOHNSON, LIFECLICKS, 
LLC, and 12DAILY PRO, 

Defendants. 

Case No. 



Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") alleges as 

follows: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b), 

20(d)(l) and 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act"), 15 U.S.C. $5 
77t(b), 77t(d)(l) & 77v(a), and Sections 2 1 (d)(l), 2 1 (d)(3)(A), 2 1(e) and 27 of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. $5  78u(d)(l), 

78u(d)(3)(A), 78u(e) & 78aa. Defendants have, directly or indirectly, made use of 

the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the 

facilities of a national securities exchange, in connection with the transactions, 

acts, practices, and courses of business alleged in this complaint. 

2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to Section 22(a) of the 

Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 77v(a), and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 

5 78aa, because certain of the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of conduct 

constituting violations of the federal securities laws occurred within this district. 

SUMMARY 

3. This matter involves the fraudulent, unregistered offering of 

investment contracts constituting securities in a Ponzi scheme offered and sold via 

;he Internet by two entities, defendant 12daily Pro and defendant LifeClicks, LLC, 

md their owner, defendant Charis Johnson (collectively "Defendants"). 

4. LifeClicks and Johnson operate the Internet website 

m. 12dail~pro.com. 12daily Pro purports to be a "paid Autosurf program" 

a hose members purportedly earn money for "viewing the websites owned or 

xomoted by other online professionals." In fact, 12daily Pro's offer and sale of 

nembership units constitutes the unregistered offer and sale of securities in the 

'orrn of investment contracts under federal securities law. Unbeknownst to its 

nvestors, 12daily Pro is, in reality, operating a massive Ponzi scheme. 

5. Through the 12daily Pro website, Defendants solicit investors to 
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become "upgraded members" of 12daily Pro by buying "units" for a "membership 

fee" of $6 per unit. 12daily Pro claims to have had more than 300,000 members 

over the life of the offering and to currently have more than 180,000 active 

members. 12daily Pro's website was recently ranked the 352"* most heavily 

trafficked website on the Internet. 

6. 12daily Pro promises to pay each upgraded member 12% of his or her 

membership fee per day for 12 days. At the end of 12 days, the member 

purportedly will have earned a total of 144% of his or her original membership fee, 

44% of which is profit on the membership fee. 

7. To receive the promised payment, an upgraded member purportedly 

must view at least 12 web pages per day during the 12-day period. 12daily Pro 

estimates that viewing the web pages should take five minutes per day. 

8. Since mid-2005, the Defendants have raised more than $50 million 

from more than 300,000 investors nationwide and overseas. 

9. One of the Defendants' payment processors, StormPay, Inc., currently 

holds approximately $50 million in investor funds, which it has voluntarily agreed 

to freeze. The Defendants are seeking to undo the freeze. 

10. The Defendants have made material misrepresentations and omissions 

in offering and selling the 12daily Pro investment program. Undisclosed to 

investors, the Defendants are operating 12daily Pro as almost a pure Ponzi 

schemeat  least 95% of the funds 12daily Pro uses to pay returns to upgraded 

members come from new investments in the form of new or existing members' 

~pgrade fees. 

11. In addition, the Defendants are misappropriating investor funds. 

Undisclosed to investors, Johnson has transferred approximately $1.9 million in 

nvestor hnds to her personal bank account since mid-2005. The bank holding 

rohnson's account is unwilling to freeze the hnds in the account without a court 

x-der. 
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12. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described in this complaint, 

have violated, and unless enjoined will continue to violate, the antifraud and 

securities registration provisions of the federal securities laws. By this complaint, 

the Commission seeks a temporary restraining order, an asset freeze, an order 

requiring accountings, an order prohibiting the destruction of documents, and an 

order expediting discovery against each of the Defendants, and an order appointing 

a receiver over the assets of 12daily Pro and LifeClicks; and also seeks preliminary 

and permanent injunctions, disgorgement with prejudgment interest, and civil 

penalties against each of the proposed Defendants. 

THE DEFENDANTS 

13. 12daily Pro is purportedly located in Charlotte, North Carolina. On 

its website, www. l2dailypro.com, 12daily Pro is described as a "paid Autosurf 

program" whose "[mlembers earn money for viewing the websites owned and/or 

promoted by other online professionals." No registration statement has been filed 

with the Commission or is in effect with respect to 12daily Pro's offer or sale of 

securities. 

14. LifeClicks, LLC ("LifeClicks") is a North Carolina limited liability 

2ompany located in Charlotte, North Carolina. LifeClicks purports to own and 

>perate 12daily Pro. 

15. Charis Johnson, age 33, is a resident of Charlotte, North Carolina. 

fohnson is the owner of LifeClicks and the administrator of the 12daily Pro 

website. 

THE  DAILY PRO OFFERING 

16. From at least mid-2005 to the present, the Defendants have offered 

ind sold, through the 12daily Pro website, securities in the form of investment 

:ontracts to approximately 300,000 investors nationwide and overseas, including 

nore than 6,400 investors who reside in California, many of whom reside in the 

Zentral District of California. 
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17. The Defendants purport to operate 12daily Pro as a "paid Autosurf 

program" whose members purportedly earn money by viewing websites owned or 

promoted by other online members. 

18. Autosurf is a form of online advertising program that purportedly 

generates advertising revenue by automatically rotating advertised websites into a 

viewer's Internet browser. Advertisers purportedly pay money to "hosts" such as 

12daily Pro, which then pay their members to view the rotated websites. 

19. Through the 12daily Pro website, the Defendants solicit investors to 

become members of 12daily Pro. 

20. The Defendants offer two kinds of membership-regular 

memberships (which are free) and "upgraded" memberships. 

2 1. To become an upgraded member, a member must pay 12daily Pro a 

'fee" of $6 per unit, with a maximum of 1,000 units. 

22. To pay for the upgraded membership, a member must open an account 

with one of 12daily Pro's Internet payment processors. 

23. Until recently, 12daily Pro used StormPay to process the majority of 

ts transactions. 

24. 12daily Pro provides upgraded members with three benefits not 

rovided to regular, or non-paying, members. 

25. First, 12daily Pro pays each upgraded member (but not regular 

nembers) 12% per day on his or her membership fee for 12 days, purportedly for 

he upgraded member's viewing a minimum of 12 web pages per day. At the end 

)f 12 days, each upgraded member has purportedly earned 144% on his or her 

nembership fee, 44% of which is profit on the membership fee. This return 

:quates to an annualized yield of more than 1,300%. 

26. Second, 12daily Pro pays each upgraded member a 12% "referral 

:ommission" on first level referrals. 

27. Third, 12daily Pro allows each upgraded member to submit one 
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website to be included in the online advertising program that automatically rotates 

the advertising websites into the Internet browsers of other 12daily Pro members. 

THE INVESTMENT NATURE OF TFIE  DAILY PRO MEMBERSHIP UNITS 

28. The membership fee paid by an upgraded member of 12daily Pro 

constitutes an investment contract because the receipt of payment fi-om 12daily Pro 

is dependent upon a member's payment of the membership fee, and not on his or 

her provision of services. 

29. Under the terms of the 12daily Pro program, the Defendants pay the 

purported 12% daily return only to upgraded (i.e., paying) members who agree to 

view 12 web pages per day, but pay nothing to regular (i.e., non-paying) members 

regardless of how many web pages they view. 

30. The amount of returns that 12daily Pro pays an upgraded member is 

dependent solely upon how much money he or she has put into the program, not on 

the amount of service he or she renders to 12daily Pro. For instance, an upgraded 

member receiving the purported 12% daily return on a $6,000 investment ($720 

oer day) is not required to view any more web pages than an upgraded member 

eeceiving the purported 12% daily return on a $6 investment ($0.72 per day). 

3 1. The funds purportedly used to pay the upgraded members result 

xincipally fi-om the efforts of the Defendants, and not from the efforts of the 

lpgraded members. The 12daily Pro website states that upgraded members' 

:arnings "are financed by multiple income streams, including advertising, and off- 

;ite investments." Upgraded members have no role, however, in negotiating 

idvertising agreements, making off-site investments, or collecting revenue from 

my of the purported income sources. 

32. The so-called "services" purportedly rendered by the upgraded 

nembers are minimal or non-existent. The Defendants estimate that upgraded 

nembers' web page surfing requirement will take five minutes per day. There is 

lo requirement that members must evaluate, comment on, or otherwise respond to 
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the web pages viewed. It is unclear whether 12daily Pro is even able to determine 

whether an upgraded member has actually viewed the web pages or simply turned 

his or her computer on and left the room. 

THE UNREGISTERED OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN THE FORM OF INVESTMENT 

CONTRACTS BY  DAILY PRO 

33. The membership units in 12daily Pro that are offered and sold by the 

Defendants are securities in the form of investment contracts. 

34. No registration statement has been filed with the Commission or is in 

effect with respect to the Defendants' offer or sale of securities in the form of 

investment contracts with 12daily Pro. 

DEFENDANTS' OPERATION OF A PONZI SCHEME AND MISUSE OF INVESTOR 

FUNDS 

35. On the home page of the 12daily Pro website, Defendants represent 

that the earnings paid to upgraded members "are financed by multiple income 

streams including advertising, and off-site investments." 

36. In the Frequently Asked Questions section of the 12daily Pro website, 

Defendants represent that "upgrade earnings are financed not only [by] incoming 

member fees, but also with multiple income streams including advertising, and off- 

site investments." 

37. Defendants, however, fail to disclose that approximately 95% of the 

funds that the Defendants have paid to upgraded members have come from new 

investments in the form of upgrade membership fees paid by new or existing 

members, that the other income streams are not sufficient to pay the promised 

returns to upgraded members, that the Defendants are operating the 12daily Pro 

program as almost a pure Ponzi scheme, and that Defendants will have to obtain an 

ever-increasing number of upgraded members, or investors, to continue to pay the 

returns promised to current investors. 

38. Defendants have used substantial amounts of investor funds for 
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improper purposes. Since mid-2005, Johnson has transferred approximately $1.9 

million in investor hnds to her personal bank account. Defendants failed to 

disclose these transfers to investors. 

39. There is a reasonable likelihood that Defendants' fraudulent conduct 

will continue if they are not enjoined. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

UNREGISTERED OFFER AND SALE OF SECURITIES 

Violations of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act 

40. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 

through 39, above. 

41. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

indirectly, made use of means or instruments of transportation or communication 

in interstate commerce or of the mails, to offer to sell or to sell securities, or to 

sarry or cause such securities to be carried through the mails or in interstate 

sommerce for the purpose of sale or for delivery after sale. 

42. No registration statement has been filed with the Commission or has 

3een in effect with respect to the offering alleged herein. 

43. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendants violated, and 

mless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of 

.he Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $ $ 77e(a) and 77e(c). 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FRAUD IN THE OFFER OR SALE OF SECURITIES 

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act 

44. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 

hrough 39, above. 

45. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

ndirectly, in the offer or sale of securities by the use of means or instruments of 

ransportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails: 
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with scienter, employed devices, schemes, or artifices to 

de fiaud; 

obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of a 

material fact or by omitting to state a material fact necessary in 

order to make the statements made, in the light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or 

engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which 

operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the 

purchaser. 

By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendants violated, and 

unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 17(a) of the 

Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a). 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FRAUD IN CONNECTION WITH THE PURCHASE OR SALE OF SECURITIES 

Violations of Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 Thereunder 

47. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 

:hrough 39, above. 

48. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

ndirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, by the use of 

neans or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities 

)fa national securities exchange, with scienter: 

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud; 

b. made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a 

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, 

in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 

not misleading; or 

c. engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which 

operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other 
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persons. 

49. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendants violated, and 

unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 10(b) of the 

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 78j(b), and Rule 1 Ob-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. $ 

240.10b-5. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court: 

I. 

Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that the Defendants committed 

;he alleged violations. 

11. 

Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), 

.emporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendants and their 

>fficers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons in active 

:oncert or participation with any of them, who receive actual notice of the 

udgment by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from violating 

Sections 5(a), 15 U.S.C. 5 77e(a), 5(c), 15 U.S.C. $ 77e(c), and 17(a), 15 U.S.C. 5 
77q(a), of the Securities Act, and Section 10(b), 15 U.S.C. fj 78j(b), of the 

Zxchange Act, and Rule 1 Ob-5 thereunder; 17 C.F.R. 5 240.10b-5. 

111. 

Issue, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, as to all Defendants, a 

emporary restraining order, an order for accountings, an order prohibiting the 

lestruction of documents, an order expediting discovery, an order freezing their 

s e t s  (including, without limitation, accounts at StormPay, Inc., EM0 

:orporation, e-gold, Ltd., and Bank of America), an order appointing a receiver 

wer the assets of 12daily Pro and StormPay, and preliminary and permanent 

njunctions. 

'1 

10 



IV. 

Order each Defendant to disgorge all ill-gotten gains fiom their illegal 

:onduct, together with prejudgment interest thereon. 

Order the Defendants to pay civil penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the 

Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 77t(d), and Section 2 1 (d)(3) of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C. 5 78u(d)(3). 

VI. 

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of equity 

ind the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the 

.ems of all orders and decrees that may be entered, or to entertain any suitable 

ipplication or motion for ,additional relief within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

VII. 

Grant such other and hrther relief as this Court may determine to be just and 

iecessary. 

7- -- 
MICHAEL A. PIAZZA 
KELLY C. BOWERS 
DAVID J. VAN HAVERMAAT 
PETER F. DEL GRECO 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Securities and Exchange Commission 


